
 

Corporate Director (Law and Governance) and  
Monitoring Officer, T W Mortimer LLB Solicitor 

  

 

 
 

 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 
 
Notice of a Meeting, to be held as a Virtual Meeting on Microsoft Teams in accordance 
with Regulation 5 of The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) 
(Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) 
Regulations 2020 on Monday, 25th January, 2021 at 5.00 pm. PLEASE NOTE 
CHANGED START TIME  
 

 
The Members of the Standards Committee are:- 
 
Councillor Bell (Chairman) 
Councillor Shorter (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Cllrs. Chilton, Forest, Knowles, Ovenden, Pickering and Turner 
 
Mrs C Vant – Independent Person  
Mr R Brasier, Mr D Lyward – Parish Council Representative 
 
Agenda 

  Page Nos.. 

1.   Apologies/Substitutes 
 

 

 To receive Notification of Substitutes in accordance with Procedure 
Rule 1.2(c) 
 

 

2.   Declarations of Interest 
 

1 - 2 

 To declare any interests which fall under the following categories, as 
explained on the attached document: 
  
a) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) 
b) Other Significant Interests (OSI) 
c) Voluntary Announcements of Other Interests 
  
See Agenda Item 2 for further details. 
 

 

3.   Minutes 
 

3 - 4 

 To approve the Minutes of the Meeting of this Committee held on the 
3rd February 2020. 
 

 

4.   Annual Report of the Council's Monitoring Officer 2020 
 

5 - 16 

   

 



15th January 2021 
 
Queries concerning this agenda?  Please contact Member Services 
Telephone: (01233) 330349 Email: membersservices@ashford.gov.uk  
Agendas, Reports and Minutes are available on: https://ashford.moderngov.co.uk  

 
 

mailto:membersservices@ashford.gov.uk
https://ashford.moderngov.co.uk/


Declarations of Interest (see also “Advice to Members” below) 
 
(a) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) under the Localism Act 2011, relating to items on 

this agenda.  The nature as well as the existence of any such interest must be declared, and 
the agenda item(s) to which it relates must be stated. 
 
A Member who declares a DPI in relation to any item will need to leave the meeting for that 
item (unless a relevant Dispensation has been granted). 

 
(b) Other Significant Interests (OSI) under the Kent Code of Conduct relating to items on this 

agenda.  The nature as well as the existence of any such interest must be declared, and the 
agenda item(s) to which it relates must be stated. 
 
A Member who declares an OSI in relation to any item will need to leave the meeting before 
the debate and vote on that item (unless a relevant Dispensation has been granted).  
However, prior to leaving, the Member may address the Committee in the same way that a 
member of the public may do so. 

 
(c) Voluntary Announcements of Other Interests not required to be disclosed under (a) and 

(b), i.e. announcements made for transparency alone, such as: 
 

 Membership of amenity societies, Town/Community/Parish Councils, residents’ groups or 
other outside bodies that have expressed views or made representations, but the Member 
was not involved in compiling or making those views/representations, or 

 

 Where a Member knows a person involved, but does not have a close association with 
that person, or 

 

 Where an item would affect the well-being of a Member, relative, close associate, 
employer, etc. but not his/her financial position. 

 
 [Note: Where an item would be likely to affect the financial position of a Member, relative, 

close associate, employer, etc.; OR where an item is an application made by a Member, 
relative, close associate, employer, etc., there is likely to be an OSI or in some cases a DPI. 
ALSO, holding a committee position/office within an amenity society or other outside body, or 
having any involvement in compiling/making views/representations by such a body, may give 
rise to a perception of bias and require the Member to take no part in any motion or vote.] 

 
Advice to Members on Declarations of Interest:   

(a) Government Guidance on DPI is available in DCLG’s Guide for Councillors, at 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/5962/2193362.pdf 

 
(b) The Kent Code of Conduct was adopted by the Full Council on 19 July 2012, 

and a copy can be found in the Constitution alongside the Council’s Good Practice Protocol 
for Councillors dealing with Planning Matters. See  https://www.ashford.gov.uk/media/2098/z-word5-

democratic-services-constitution-2019-constitution-of-abc-may-2019-part-5.pdf  
 
(c) Where a Member declares a committee position or office within, or membership of, an outside 

body that has expressed views or made representations, this will be taken as a statement 
that the Member was not involved in compiling or making them and has retained an open 
mind on the item(s) in question. If this is not the case, the situation must be explained. 

 

If any Member has any doubt about any interest which he/she may have in any item on this 
agenda, he/she should seek advice from the Director of Law and Governance and Monitoring 
Officer, or from other Solicitors in Legal and Democracy as early as possible, and in advance 
of the Meeting. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/5962/2193362.pdf
https://www.ashford.gov.uk/media/2098/z-word5-democratic-services-constitution-2019-constitution-of-abc-may-2019-part-5.pdf
https://www.ashford.gov.uk/media/2098/z-word5-democratic-services-constitution-2019-constitution-of-abc-may-2019-part-5.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



STD 

479 
 

Standards Committee 
 
Minutes of a Meeting of the Standards Committee held in the Council Chamber, 
Civic Centre, Tannery Lane, Ashford on the 3rd February 2020. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr. Mrs Bell (Chairman); 
Cllr. Shorter (Vice-Chairman); 
 
Cllrs. Knowles, Link, Ovenden, Pickering. 
 
Mrs C Vant – Independent Person 
Mr D Lyward – Parish Council Representative. 
 
Apologies: 
 
Cllrs. Chilton. 
 
Also Present: 
 
Monitoring Officer, Deputy Monitoring Officer, Member Services Manager 
(Operational). 

 

292 Minutes 
 
Resolved: 
 
That the Minutes of the Meeting of this Committee held on the 9th October 2019 
be approved and confirmed as a correct record. 

 

293 Annual Report of the Council’s Monitoring Officer 
2019 

 
The Monitoring Officer introduced his Annual Report for the calendar year 2019, 
which would be presented to the Council on the 5th March 2020. The report 
assessed activity in probity and related governance matters, in particular in relation 
to formal complaints about alleged breaches of protocols and codes of conduct by 
Borough and Parish Councillors. These related to the calendar year 2019.  
 
In addition, the report included data on Ombudsman complaints as these were also 
handled by the Monitoring Officer and his staff. The relevant period for these related 
to the most recent data provided by the Ombudsman, namely 1st April 2018 to 31st 
March 2019. 
 
With regard to Code of Conduct Complaints, a series of complex formal complaints 
from the previous period had been concluded during 2019. A number of further 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



STD 
030220 

480 
 

complaints had arisen during 2019 involving both Borough and Parish Councillors. 
These were detailed at Table 1 on Page 11 of the report. 
 
In terms of governance issues, 2019 had seen: - the adoption of a new Social Media 
Guidance Note for Councillors in time for the new Council elected in May 2019; the 
approval of a completely revised protocol on Councillor/Officer Working 
Relationships; and the commencement of a review of the current Arrangements for 
handling code of conduct complaints to ensure they remained fit for purpose and 
reflected current best practice. The latter of these is the subject of ongoing work and 
would be the subject of a further report later in the year. In relation to the review of 
the Local Government Ethical Standards system by the Committee on Standards in 
Public Life (CSPL), the Monitoring Officer reminded the Committee that had been 
published in January 2019, making 26 formal recommendations to the Prime Minister 
and 15 ‘Best Practice’ recommendations. The Government response to those 
recommendations had been delayed due to other priorities, but it was hoped that 
these would now be picked up and responded to later in the year.  
 
In relation to Ombudsman Complaints, the Monitoring Officer advised that there had 
been 19 received by the Local Government Ombudsman (LGO) which was a slight 
increase from 16 in the previous year. Only one of these however had been upheld.  
 
In response to questions about training, the Monitoring Officer advised that Parish, 
Town and Community Councils had been invited to the Code of Conduct training put 
on by ABC in June 2019, and indeed a number had attended. There did seem to be 
ongoing issues in terms of conduct, bullying and offensive comments on social 
media across Local Councils and it would be important to ensure that such training 
was kept up-to-date and offered to all. There was a wider discussion on the 
difficulties of encouraging the right Members to attend such training sessions. The 
Chairman of the Member Training Panel was present and said that he would take 
this whole topic up for discussion at a future meeting.  

 
The Chairman of the Committee pointed out that the Kent Association of Local 
Councils (KALC) also ran a comprehensive programme of training for Local Councils 
and this did include some reference to the code of conduct, although not at the level 
of detail offered by ABC. On-line training may also be an option. 

     
Resolved: 
 
That (i) the Annual Report of the Monitoring Officer for 2019 be received, 

noted and forwarded to Full Council for approval. 
 
           (ii)      the Monitoring Officer report to future meeting(s) of the Standards 

Committee in relation to the recommendations of the CSPL Report 
and the review of Arrangements. 

 
 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
Queries concerning these minutes?  Please contact Member Services: 
Telephone: 01233 330349  Email: membersservices@ashford.gov.uk  
Agendas, Reports and Minutes are available on: https://ashford.moderngov.co.uk  

Page 4

mailto:membersservices@ashford.gov.uk
https://ashford.moderngov.co.uk/


Standards Committee 
25 JANUARY 2021 

 
Council 

 4 MARCH  2021 
 

Annual Report Of The Council's 
Monitoring Officer – 2020 

 
 
A. Introduction 
 
1. The principal purpose of my Annual Report is to assess activity in probity and 

related governance matters, in particular in relation to formal complaints about 
alleged breaches of protocols and codes of conduct by borough and parish 
councillors.  The report also provides an opportunity to review the 
effectiveness of current procedures.  This report deals with the calendar year 
2020 in relation to these matters. 

 
2. The Council’s current code of conduct for councillors was adopted on 20 July 

2012 and has since been the subject of a number of amendments.  This code 
is based on Localism Act principles and was developed as a collaborative 
project by Kent Monitoring Officers in consultation with task groups of 
councillors within individual councils.  The vast majority of district and parish 
councils in Kent have adopted this “Kent Model Code of Conduct”.   

 
3. When it adopted the Code of Conduct in 2012, the Council also adopted new 

procedural “Arrangements” for handling code of conduct complaints.  Again 
this was developed on a Kent-wide basis with the objective of simplifying 
procedures and removing unnecessary bureaucracy which had beset the 
previous standards regime. 

 
4. The Council has also adopted a “Good Practice Protocol for Councillors 

Dealing with Planning Matters”.  This sets out detailed best practice rules for 
this specialist and sensitive area of the Council’s work which go beyond the 
general rules set out in the code of conduct.  The Protocol was substantially 
revised and updated in October 2015 to reflect changes in the law and 
government guidance.  The first formal complaint of breach of the Protocol 
was dealt with in 2017. 

 
5. My Annual Report also includes data on Ombudsman complaints as these are 

also handled by or on behalf of the Monitoring Officer.  The Standards 
Committee monitors any issues of probity raised in Ombudsman 
investigations.  In terms of Ombudsman complaints the relevant period relates 
to the most recent data provided by the Ombudsman namely that for the 
period 1st April 2019 to 31 March 2020. 

 
B. Code of Conduct Complaints 2020 
 

6. Formal complaint activity in Ashford has been relatively low since adoption of 
the new code of conduct in 2012. For example, during 2016 no new formal 
complaints were submitted, whilst in previous years the few complaints made, 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



mainly at Parish Council level, had been resolved informally.  No complaints 
had been taken to formal investigation and hearing up to the end of 2016.  
However the period since 2017 has been more challenging. In my last annual 
report, I reported on a series of complex formal complaints which had recently 
been concluded. Since early 2020, various national and local “lockdowns” have 
been in place with most staff working remotely and councillor meetings taking 
place “virtually”. However this has not resulted in a reduction of formal or 
informal complaint activity. On the contrary the volume of informal complaint 
activity and requests for advice has grown significantly at parish council level. 
Some of this has resulted from new “virtual” meeting procedures and 
considerable support has had to be provided to some local councils. Several 
formal complaints have been made in 2020 although a number have fallen 
away due to a failure to provide information or the fact that the complaint failed 
to meet legal or local assessment criteria eg. related to private conduct. 

 
 
7. The formal complaints received and registered in 2020 are set out in Table 1 

below 
 

Table 1 

Formal Code of Conduct Complaints Made 

 

Council Ref Allegations Decision(s) Comments 

ABC 20/007 
PR304/200 
TENTERDEN 

Bullying/Intimidating 
Conduct 

Under 
consideration 

Further 
information 
awaited 

ABC 20/010 
PR304/203 
TENTERDEN 

As above As above As above 

ABC 20/009 
PR304/202 

Confer 
advantage/disadvantage 
Disrepute 

Under 
consideration 

Further 
information 
awaited 

ABC 20/008 
PR304/201 

PARISH 

Misuse of resources 
Disrepute 

Under 
consideration 

Further 
information 
awaited 

 

NB. In my last annual report, there was a reference to a Bilsington complaint allegation of 
disclosure of confidential information/bullying. The reference to bullying was incorrect 

 

C. Other Relevant Governance Developments in 2020 
 

8. The new Social Media Guidance Note for Councillors was adopted in May 
2019. In addition a revised Councillor/Officer Working Relationship protocol 
was adopted clarifying standards of expected behaviours. Some training in 
relation to these protocols was provided following the elections in 2019 and I 
am pleased to say that noticeably fewer complaints (formal and informal) have 
related to social media usage. 

Page 6



9.  In my last annual report I included an update on the review work of the national 
Committee on Standards in Public Life (CSPL). The CSPL had made 15 “Best 
Practice” Recommendations in relation to the local government ethical 
standards system, some of which required legislation to implement. An update 
has been provided to the CSPL by all local authorities. 

10. One of the CSPL’s formal recommendations in 2019 was that the Local 
Government Association should prepare an optional new Model Code of 
Conduct for Councillors in order to encourage greater consistency and higher 
standards. Following extensive consultation the LGA published a new Model 
Code of Conduct a few days before Christmas. This will now be given detailed 
consideration by the Kent Monitoring Officers Group in the near future and a 
further report to this Committee will be presented when that work is complete. 

11. Following a review of the LGA’s most recent “Probity in Planning” Guidance, 
the membership of the Council’s Planning Committee was changed to reflect 
some recommended practice in that Guidance 

 
 
 
D. Ombudsman Complaints 2019/20 
 
12. Since April 2013, complaints about social housing have been dealt with by the 

Housing Ombudsman (HO) and not the Local Government Ombudsman 
(LGO).   

 
13. For Members’ information the analysis of the complaints resolved by the LGO 

in 2019/20 are attached (Appendix A).  The LGO’s Annual Letter and Report 
are also included in Appendix A. 

 
14. The number of complaints received by the Ombudsman in 2019/20 (17) was 

slightly lower than in 2018/2019 (19) but, the number of complaints upheld 
was three, as opposed to one in the previous year. Details are provided in the 
Table below. 

 
15. A new column has been added to the Table of Ombudsman Complaints giving 

information on action taken/lessons learned where relevant. This is consistent 
with the approach advocated in the last Ombudsman’s annual review letter. 

 
 
E. Recommendations 
 
1. That the Annual Report of the Monitoring Officer for 2020 be received and 

noted.  
 
2. That the Monitoring Officer report to future meeting(s) of the Standards    

Committee in relation to the new LGA Model Code of Conduct. 
 
 
T W MORTIMER 
Director of Law and Governance & Monitoring Officer 
January 2021 

 

Page 7



 

Appendix A – Analysis of Ombudsman Complaints 
 

The Ombudsman investigates complaints about Council services to remedy personal injustice caused by maladministration (“fault”) or 
service failure. 
 
Between 1st April 2019 and 31st March 2020 the Local Government Ombudsman (LGO) received 17 complaints, with decisions on 16 of 
those as follows: 
 
Not investigated by the LGO 
Incomplete or invalid complaint 
Advice Given by LGO 
Referred back for local resolution 
 
 
Closed after initial enquiries 
Not upheld 
Investigated by the LGO and Upheld 
 
 
TOTAL 

 
 
  1 
  1 
  4 
  6 
 
  7 
  0 
  3 
10 
 
16 

 
 
Attached is a table providing further details on the 10 complaints about which the LGO contacted the Council, and outcome of these 
complaints.  Only 3 complaints were fully investigated by the LGO and these were Upheld.  Actions taken by the Council and lessons 
learned as a result are also included in the attached table.   
 
I have also attached the Ombudsman’s Annual Review letter 2019/20.   
 
When the LGO has issued a report on a completed investigation, these are generally published in the Complaints Outcomes section of 
the LGO website www.lgo.org.uk.  The published information does not name the complainant or any individual involved with the 
complaint.   

P
age 8

http://www.lgo.org.uk/


Local Government Ombudsman Decisions 1st April 2019 – 31st March 2020 

 
Reference ABC Dept Complaint details LGO Decision LGO comments Action taken by the 

Council/lessons learned 
 

18 011 
675 

Housing Complained about the 
Council’s handling of her 
request for housing help 
when she and her son were 
made homeless. 

Upheld Evidence of fault, 
particularly the 
Council did not 
comply with the 
Relief Duty it owed 
the complainant. 

 Apology to complainant.   

 Payment of £400 in 
compensation for 
uncertainty and distress 
suffered. 

 Action plan implemented 
following training 
sessions with the staff 
dedicated to casework 
management, 
administrative 
processes, and 
embedding more rigour 
in the qualitative 
element of cases.  Also 
to impart better 
awareness of the LGO’s 
role.   

19 002 
836 

Revenues & 
Benefits 

Complained that the Council 
was pursuing him for unpaid 
business rates for which he 
considered he was not 
liable. 

Closed after initial 
enquiries 

LGO decided not to 
investigate as 
complainant’s 
liability had been 
established at 
court. 

N/A 

P
age 9



18 016 
200 

Planning & 
Devt 

Complained about the 
Council’s handling of his 
planning application and its 
enforcement action relating 
to conversion of his front 
garden to form a driveway. 

Upheld Evidence of fault 
and remedy 
completed late.  

 Payment of £150 in 
recognition of the 
injustice cause to the 
complainant. 

 This complaint was 
made at a time when 
the Council 
employed several 
case officers who 
were contracted 
consultants because 
of the difficulties 
recruiting permanent 
staff.  The standard 
of service at times 
therefore sadly fell 
short of what the 
Council aspires to 
provide.  Given that 
the Council now has 
an almost have a 
fully resourced team, 
it is very unlikely for 
this to happen again.   
Notwithstanding this, 
the Council is 
working with the 
PAS to provide 
internal training to 
look at ways of 
improving service 
delivery, which will 

P
age 10



include better 
communication with 
the customer.    

19 001 
187 

Planning & 
Devt 

Complained that the Council 
took planning enforcement 
action against him for a 
garage door he fitted. 

Closed after initial 
enquiries 

Closed after initial 
enquiries – out of 
jurisdiction. 

N/A 

19 004 
114 

Environmental 
Health 

Complained about the way 
the Council had dealt with 
complainant’s concerns 
about dog faeces in a 
neighbour’s garden. 

Closed after initial 
enquiries 

Closed after initial 
enquiries – no 
further action. 

N/A 

19 007 
588 

Planning & 
Devt 

Complained about the 
Council’s delay and the 
following refusal of her 
planning application. 

Closed after initial 
enquiries 

Closed after initial 
enquiries – out of 
jurisdiction. 

N/A 

19 011 
006 

Parking Complained about the 
Council’s enforcement of a 
Traffic Regulation Order 
preventing vehicular access 
to the town centre.   

Closed after initial 
enquiries 

Closed after initial 
enquiries – no 
further action. 

N/A 

19 010 
743 

Legal & 
Democracy 

Complained that the Council 
failed to divert a footpath on 
her land prior to her 
purchase of her property. 

Closed after initial 
enquiries 

Closed after initial 
enquiries – no 
further action. 

N/A 

19 004 
416 

Planning Complained that the Council 
did not notify him about a 
planning application to 
develop on a site near his 
house.   

Upheld Evidence that the 
Council failed to 
update the 
complainant 
properly about one 
of his complaints 

The Council agreed to 
remind its Planning 
Enforcement Officers of the 
need to respond to all parts 
of a complaint they had 
investigated when providing 
updates to members of the 

P
age 11



and remedy 
completed late. 

public.  A Meeting was 
subsequently held with 
Enforcement Officers, who 
were reminded of the 
importance of 
communicating fully with 
complainants.   

19 018 
211 

Planning Complained that the Council 
delayed in deciding his 
planning application and as 
a result he suffered financial 
loss, stress and upset. 

Closed after initial 
enquiries 

Closed after initial 
enquiries – out of 
jurisdiction. 

N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

P
age 12



 Page 13



 

Page 14



 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Minutes
	4 Annual Report of the Council's Monitoring Officer 2020

